
Any party needing an accommodation contact the Planning & Development Department at  

(860) 871-3601 or via email @mdamato@tolland.org 

The Town of Tolland is an Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer. 

 

Agenda 

Tolland Inland Wetlands Commission 
Council Chambers, 6th level, 21 Tolland Green, Tolland, CT 06084 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Seating of Alternate(s)  

 

3. Public Participation – Issues of concern not on the Agenda (2 minute limit) 

 

4. Additions/Changes to Agenda 

 

5. New Business 

 

5.1 Show Cause Hearing to consider a Cease & Correct Order issued to the property owner of 12 

Goose Lane (MBL 28/C/007) for the deposition of material/filling activities within the 

wetland and upland review area without a permit. Continued from January 19, 2023. 

 

6. Old Business 

 

7. Wetlands Agent Report 

 

8. Other Business 

 

8.1 Informal Discussion – Wetland Application for Pond Dredging. 

 

9. Correspondence 

 

9.1 CAWS Annual Meeting. 

 

9.2 Coventry Planning and Zoning Commission Notice. 

 

10. Approval of Minutes – January 19, 2023 Regular Meeting 

 

11. Adjournment 

 

To join the Zoom Meeting, either click: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8608713602?pwd=cXZLNG9SWVlvNkNjZU9NYUxCd2xiUT09 

One tap mobile: +16469313860,,8608713602#,,,,*06084#  

Or call: 1-929-205-6099 and input: 

Meeting ID: 860 871 3602 

Passcode: 06084 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8608713602?pwd=cXZLNG9SWVlvNkNjZU9NYUxCd2xiUT09


Tolland 
Inland Wetlands 

Commission

January 11, 2023 Cease and Correct Order

12 Goose Lane

Supplemental Information



12/21/22



1/11/23

12/27/22

1/11/23























Tolland Inland Wetlands Commission 

 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, 6th level,  

21 Tolland Green, Tolland, CT 06084 

Remote - Zoom 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 

 

Members Present:  Raymond Culver, Chairman (in person) 

Archie Tanner, Regular (remote) 

Bob Ross, Regular (in person) 

Gary Hoehne, Regular (in person) 

 

Members Absent:  Todd Penney, Vice Chairman 

 

Others present:  Michael D’Amato, interim Wetlands Agent  (in person) 

   George Hill, attorney for 12 Goose Lane 

   Julius Gorog, property owner 12 Goose Lane 

   Kevin Martin, abutter to 12 Goose Lane 

  

1. Call to Order 

 

Meeting recording started.  Meeting called to order at 7:04 pm.  

 

2.  Seating of Alternate(s) – none 

 

3. Additions/Changes/Deletions to Agenda – none 

 

4. Public Participation – issues of concern not on the agenda (2-minute limit) – none 

 

5. New Business 

 

5.1 IWC 18-1, 131 Tolland Stage Road Extension– Applicant: Couzens Centre II, LLC.  

 

D’Amato said the statutes have changed for certain land use approvals and upon request of the permit holder, the 

Commission must extend the permit unless there are extenuating circumstances or a significant change to the scope 

of work.  D’Amato said the permit holder is requesting a 5-year extension on a permit that was previously issued in 

2018.  D’Amato said the permit holder is only requesting an extension without any modifications.   

 

Ross/Hoehne: Motion: extend Inlands Wetlands Commission 18-1, 131 Tolland Stage Road permit an 

additional 5 years. 

 

Unanimously approved 

 

 Culver – Y, Ross – Y, Tanner – Y, Hoehne – Y 

 

5.2 Show Cause Hearing to consider a Cease & Correct Order issued to the property owner of 12 Goose 

Lane (MBL 28/C/007) for the deposition of material/filling activities within the wetland and upland 

review area without a permit.  

 

D’Amato reviewed the information provided to the Commissioners in the meeting packet.  D’Amato reviewed all 

of the photos including the dates the photos were taken, the vantage points from which the photos were taken and 

the areas of concern.  D’Amato said abutters have contacted the Town Staff asking questions and registering 

complaints and voicing concerns.  D’Amato said he sent an informal warning letter in February 2022 which 



Inlands Wetlands Commission – January 19, 2023   2 

 
outlined the Town’s concerns following a field inspection.  The letter also explains what types of activities would 

require a permit and that there are regulated areas on the property.   

 

D'Amato referred to the next document which is the formal Cease and Correct Order which was sent on January 

11, 2023.  D’Amato said the letter outlines that a Show Cause Hearing would need to held within 10 days of 

issuance, which coincides with the Inlands Wetlands Commission meeting of today’s date.  D’Amato added that 

the Cease and Correct order includes information outlining the only work that can be done on the site while this 

order is in effect.  This includes: “cease any further dumping, filling and grading or other site disturbing activities 

on your property…..taking corrective actions by removing all non-native material located in a wetland or upland 

review area and to provide a corrective action plan detailing all required corrective activities within 30 days of 

your receipt of this notice”.   

 

D'Amato explained to the Commissioners that this time, the Commission has the option to uphold, overturn or 

modify the Cease and Correct order. 

 

Hill introduced himself as a representative for J. Gorog.  Hill said, in his opinion, there is no wetlands on the 

property, just the pond and watercourse.  D’Amato said based on the review of the site there were wetlands on the 

property may have been filled.   Hill said Gorog had an opportunity to get a large amount of woodchips and Gorog 

has placed them on his property with the intention to develop his property for agriculture. Hill said Gorog has 

stayed 100 feet from the pond and more than 50 feet from the wetlands.  Hill said there was no intent to avoid 

Inlands Wetlands Commission regulations. 

 

Culver said there is a 100-foot buffer which should have been maintained from the pond edge.  Culver added that 

he is concerned that there are wetlands on the property and requires formal delineation to make a determination.  

Gorog said the pond is not natural, it was created by the previous property owner in 1986.  Culver said the 

wetlands has been established over the past 40 years.  Hill said Gorog is willing to work with the Town to make 

corrections. 

 

D'Amato said there is also a stream on the property and there has been unpermitted activity in this area as well.  

D’Amato also indicated that if a property owner wants to complete work “as-of-right” the Inlands Wetlands 

Commission would need to be consulted and a determination regarding “as-of-right” would need to be made by the 

Commission and the Commission would need to approve the activity. 

 

D’Amato said a permit allows activity but does not compel anyone to do anything and that a Cease and Correct 

Order compels action.  D’Amato said this property and this type of activity had been discussed 2017-2018.  It was 

explained at that time, what types of activities require a permit to protect wetlands and watercourses.   

 

Culver said if a permit was applied for, the Commission would have required a formal wetlands delineation by a 

soil scientist.  Ross said based on previous discussions in 2017/2018 the necessity of permit should have been 

known.  Hall said he was acting on guidance previously provided.  Hall said taking action based on the maps 

provided on the website should be allowed.  D’Amato referenced the disclaimer on the maps website, which 

includes: 

 

” The data available here is updated in the normal course of business and may not always represent the most 

current information. In addition, some of the data contained herein may have been compiled from third-party 

sources and the accuracy of that information cannot be confirmed. 

The Town and AppGeo, respectively, do not make any warranty, representation, or guarantee as to the content, 

sequence, accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the information provide herein. The user should not 

rely on the data provided herein without verifying its accuracy independently. The Town and AppGeo, 

respectively, explicitly disclaim any representations and warranties including, without limitation, the implied 

warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 



Inlands Wetlands Commission – January 19, 2023   3 

 
The Town and AppGeo, respectively, shall assume no liability for any errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in the 

information provided regardless of how caused and for any decision made or action taken or not taken by the 

user in reliance upon any information of data furnished hereunder. 

If you identify any data problems, please use the "Feedback" function to notify the Town and AppGeo. 

By using this site, you agree to MapGeo's Privacy Policy and Terms of Service.” 

D’Amato reviewed the regulations which apply to this situation and property which includes a pond, wetlands 

and a watercourse on the property.  Hall said he and Gorog believe that the woodchips are 100 feet from any 

regulated area.  Hoehne asked if there any woodchips near the delineated wetlands at 200 Merrow Road. 

 

Culver asked D’Amato if he believed the woodchips are 100 feet from the wetlands.  D’Amato said the action 

is unpermitted fill and that there is no information to determine what the native materials are. 

 

Culver asked how much fill has been brought into the property.  Gorog said he is not sure.  Culver said this 

Commission’s concern is protection of the wetlands and that if a property owner wants to bring fill on to a 

property that contains regulated areas, the Commission would want the property owner to obtain a permit.  He 

said it is difficult to determine the limits of the wetlands due to the amount of fill that has been deposited. 

 

Hill said Gorog is not trying to avoid following the rules.  Culver said this Commission protects wetlands and 

watercourses and that the Commission needs to know where the limits of the wetlands area.  D’Amato said a 

soil scientist would need to delineate the wetlands.  Culver reviewed the cease and Correct order.  Hall asked if 

Gorog had requested a permit, would the Commissioners have required a soil scientist to complete a 

delineation.  All Commissioners agreed that a wetlands delineation would be required as part of the permitting 

process. 

 

D'Amato reviewed the relevant minutes from previous enforcement concerns.  Culver said based on the 

reviewed minutes, the current activities would require a permit.  Tanner said there was material placed in a 

regulated area.  He believes the cease and correct order should remain in place. 

 

D’Amato said there could be negotiation to facilitate corrective action.  He said the Commission could keep 

the cease and correct order open until the next meeting if the Commission does not have enough information, 

for example to receive the wetlands delineation.  Culver asked if he would be also need a permit to complete 

the cease and correct action items.  D’Amato said no, that the Cease and Correct order would cover the 

required correction. 

 

Commissioners discussed a condition that Gorog has 30 days to get the site delineated by a certified soil 

scientist and then another 30 days to develop a corrective action plan.  D’Amato said if the action remains 

open there could still be negotiation. Ross suggested that the Order should remain in effect, that the property 

should be delineated and wetlands identified by a certified soil scientist and a plan should be developed within 

30 days.  Ross added that the amount of fill on the property is significant.  Hoehne agreed activity should cease 

and wetlands should be delineated prior to the next Inlands Wetlands Commission meeting. 

 

Culver asked the process to keep the order open.  D’Amato said the Commissioners would have to make a 

motion to keep this proceeding open.  Commissioners agreed that prior to the next meeting, the wetlands need 

to be delineated by a certified soil scientist down to native soils and that the property owner should have a 

preliminary plan for remediation and correction prepared and ready to be discussed at the February 16, 2023 

meeting. 

 

Ross/Hoehne: Motion to continue until February 16, 2023 Inlands Wetlands Commission meeting with 

the expectation that the wetlands need to be delineated by a certified soil scientist down to native soils 

and that the property owner should have a preliminary plan for remediation and correction prepared 

and ready to be discussed at the February 16, 2023 meeting. 

 



Inlands Wetlands Commission – January 19, 2023   4 

 
Unanimously approved.  

 

Culver – Y, Ross – Y, Tanner – Y, Hoehne – Y 

 

6. Old Business  

 

D’Amato said he is working on standing items and expects to have materials to discuss at the February 16, 2023 

meeting 

 

7. Wetlands Agent Report – none 

 

8. Other Business – none 

 

9. Correspondence 

 

9.1 Connecticut Bar Association Education and Training.  

 

D’Amato said the training will be in March and will be virtual.  Information is in the electronic packet.  D’Amato 

said if anyone is interested, please let him know and Town staff could enroll interested members. 

 

9.2 Solitude Lake Management Permit Application to DEEP  

 

D’Amato said he received correspondence from the State regarding a state issued permit for the use of pesticides in 

State waters. D’Amato said this notification is required whenever a pesticide is going to be used in a State 

pond/watercourse.  DEEP said Solitude Lake Management will be applying pesticide to Whitehouse Pond in Tolland. 

 

10. Approval of Minutes –   December 15, 2022 Regular Meeting  

 

Ross/Hoehne:  Motion to approve the minutes from December 15, 2022 minutes as presented. 

 

 Culver – Y, Ross – Y, Tanner – Y, Hoehne – Y 

  

 Unanimously approved. 

  

11. Adjourn 

 

Ross/Hoehne: motion to adjourn. 

 

Culver – Y, Ross – Y, Tanner – Y, Hoehne – Y 

  

 Unanimously approved. 

  

Meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
June Kausch 

Clerk, Inland Wetlands Commission 


	Agenda	
	Section 5.1 - Show Cause Hearing 
	Section 9.1 Correspondence
	Section 9.2 - Coventry Planning and Zoning Commission Notice
	Section 10 - Approval of January 19, 2023 Meeting Minutes

